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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as
Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as
Nextbillion Technology Private Limited) (the “Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March
2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
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includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
Page 2 of 13



BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion
Technology Private Limited)

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014,

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  the adverse remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the
Act and paragraph 2B(f)] below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 36 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 36 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement. :

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the respective
softwares, except for the instances at the database level mentioned below :

i) the audit trail at the database level for the general ledger system has been enabled starting
from 3 February 2025.

ii) for the revenue and operations system where the database is operated by a third-party service
provider, in the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with the audit trail
requirements in the independent auditor’s report of the service organisation, we are unable to
comment whether audit trail feature at the database level and its preservation as per the statutory
requirements of the record retention for the said software was enabled and operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further, for the periods where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the
respective accounting softwares, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with during the course of our audit.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention, except for the period and accounting softwares for which the audit trail feature
was not enabled.
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:10/1248W/W-1400022

R

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222515
Date: 27 June 2025 ICAI UDIN:25222515BMJHWZ1350

Page 5 of 13



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion
Technology Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b)

©

(d)

(e)

(ii) (a)

(b)

(i)

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, certain property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the

- Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property

Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering stock broking services (including
mutual fund, margin funding facility) and depository services. Accordingly, it does not hold any
physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of bank fixed deposits (refer Note 4 of the financial statements). According to the
information and explanations given to us, no quarterly returns or statements are required to be
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions with respect to the same.
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has made investments
in companies and has not made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any
other parties. The Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnership and other parties, in respect of which the requisite information is as
below.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans as below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion
Technology Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances
(Rs. in millions) in nature
of loans

Aggregate amount during
the year

Subsidiaries* = s - -
Joint ventures* - s - -
Associates® - & -
Others* . - 53,228.62 -

Balance outstanding as
at balance sheet date

Subsidiaries* - - - -
Joint ventures* - - - -
Associates™ - - - -
Others* - - 6,020.25 .

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant
of loans are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. There are no guarantees provided,
security given during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given to employees, in our opinion the
repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular.
Interest is not applicable on the loans given to employees. The margin trading facility loans
granted by the Company to others are repayable on demand.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans to its Promoters and related parties as defined in Clause (76)
of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") or other parties either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment except for the following loans to other
parties:
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of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion
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Particulars Other Parties (Rs. in millions)

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loan

- Repayable on demand (A) 6,018.89
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of -
Repayment (B)

Total (A+B) 6,018.89
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loan to 99%

the total loans

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act”). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (8) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. As
explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion
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(i) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

()

()

(x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the intercorporate loans taken from related parties during the
year were repayable on demand after one year from the date of availment of the loans and there
is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal. According to the information and
explanations given to us, such loans and interest thereon have been repaid on demand during
the financial year. Further in case of other borrowings including non covertible debentures and
term loans, according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under
the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiary (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company. As represented to us by
the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year under the vigil mechanism established voluntarily by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Page 9 of 13



BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nexthillion
Technology Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

©

(d)

(xvii)

(xwiii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than
ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion
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(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred the unspent amount to a Special

Account within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with Section
135(6) of the said Act. ‘ .

ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

T Y-

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222515
Date: 27 June 2025 ICAI UDIN:25222515BMJHWZ1350
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion
Technology Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Groww Invest
Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited) (“the Company"”) as of
31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects. .

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion
Technology Private Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:104248W/W-10D0022

}W s

B

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222515
Date: 27 June 2025 ICAl UDIN:25222515BMJHWZ1350
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Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely lmown as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

Balance sheet

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless atherwise stated)

Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,284.32 2,236.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 36,844,18 30,566.23
Trade receivables 5 896.88 628.89
Investments 6 638.76 3,109.64
Loan 7 6,018.89 1.95
Other financial asscts 8 17,958.15 10,129.22
Total financial assets 64,641,18 46,672.27
Non financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 26 9,61 -
Deferred tax assets (nel) 26 25,01 13.59
Property, plant and equipment 9 2.56 5.60
Right-of-use assets 10 50.72 -
Other non-financial assets 11 122.15 152.89
Total non-financial assets 210,05 172.08
Total assets 64,851.23 46,844.35
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 12
i. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.07 0.06
ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 46,892.23 37,801,60
small enterprises
Debt securities 14A 1,007.09 -
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14B 3,642.17 -
Leasc liability 10 50.02 -
Total financial liabilities 51,591.58 37,801.66
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 26 - 2.19
Provisions 13 30.77 23.59
Other non-financial liabilities 15 134.23 142.82
Total non-financial liabilities 165.00 168.60
Total liabilities 51,756.58 37,970.26
Equity
Equity share capital 16 66.25 66.25
Other equity 17 13,028.40 8,807.84
Total Shareholders’ funds 13,094.65 8,874.59
Total equity & liabilities 64,851.23 46,844.35
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying noles are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
SR & Co. LLP
ered Accountants

Registration Yumber: 101248 W/W-100022
T

ohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 27 , 2025

Harsh Jain

Director
DIN: 05321547

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 27 , 2025

for andbn behalf of the Board of Directors
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited
(Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

CIN: U65100KA2016PTC092879

}"\/La/\_c-j/ g =

Nishant Singh
Director
DIN: 09668714

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 27 , 2025



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited)
Statement of profit and loss

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations
Interest income 18 3,679.61 1,902.24
Fees and commission income 19 32,970.61 23,604.67
Net gain on fair value changes 20 196.12 96,10
Total revenue from operations 36,846.34 25,603.01
Other income 21 91.92 13.07
Tatal income 36,938.26 25,616.08
Expenses
Finance costs 22 25347 9.10
Impairment on financial instruments 59.52 3.40
Employee benefits expense 23 991.86 724.53
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 24 7.58 6.64
Other expenses 25 29,991.86 20,889.46
Total expenses 31,304.29 21,633.13
Profit before tax 5,633.97 3,982.95
Tax expense 26
Current tax

(i) for current year 1,428.22 1,005.74

(i1) relating to earlier years - 3.28
Deferred tax (credit)/ expense (12.42) (3.60)
Total tax expense 1,415.80 1,005.42
Profit for the year 4,218.17 2,971.53
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined employee benefit plans 3.39 (4.99)
Income tax relating to these items (1.00) 1.26
Other comprehensive income / (loss), net of tax 2.39 (3.73)
Tatal comprehensive income for the year 4,220.56 2,973.80
Earnings per equity share in INR (Face value: INR 10/- per share) 30
Basic earing per share 636.66 44941
Diluted eamning per share 636.66 449.41

Material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Co. LLP

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Groww Invest Tech Private Limited

(Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
CIN: U65100KA2016PTC092879

Harsh Jain
Director
DIN: 05321547

hit Alexander
artner
Membership No. : 222515

Nishant Singh
Director
DIN: 09668714

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 27 , 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 27, 2025

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 27 , 2025
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Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

Statement of changes in equity
(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
As at April 01, 2023 66,25
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Issue of equity shares -
As at March 31, 2024 66.25
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Issue of equity shares -
As at March 31, 2025 66.25
B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Securities Debenture redemption Retained Total
Premium reserve earnings
As at April 01, 2023 5,100.76 - 733.28 5,834.04
Profit during the year - - 2,977.53 2,977.53
Other comprehensive income - - (3.73) (3.73)
As at March 31, 2024 5,100.76 - 3,707.08 8,807.84
Profit during the year - - 4,218.17 4,218.17
Additions during the year - 100.00 + 100.00
Transfer during the year - - (100.00) (100.00)
Other comprehensive income - - 2.39 2.39
As at March 31, 2025 5,100,76 100.00 7,827.64 13,028.40

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for{B S R & Co. LLP

ered Accourftants
Registrationf Number: 101248W/W-100022

4’./

Rohit Alexander
fembership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 27 , 2025

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Groww Invest Tech Private Limited
(Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

CIN: U65100KA2016PTC092879
A/d /U j/ —(/ 2’4\
&0"/;
A Nishant Singh

rsh Jain
Director
DIN: 09668714

Director
DIN: 05321547

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 27 , 2025

Place: Bengalusu
Date: June 27, 2025



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited)

Statement of cash flows

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless othervise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Fazticyiaey March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 5,633.97 3,982.95
Adjustments:

Depreciation, amortization and impairment 7.58 6.64
Net gain on fair value changes (196.12) (96.10)
Impairment on financial instruments - 3.40
Gain on termination of leases (0.10) (3.67)
Interest on unwinding of security deposits (0.19) (0.14)
Interest on fixed deposits with banks from treasury funds (17.10) (558.67)
Interest on inter-corporate deposits (23.08) -
Profit from sale of investment (44.18) -
Finance cost 253.47 9.10
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 5,614.25 3,343.11
Change in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (267.99) (440.35)
(Increase)/decrease in other bank balances (6,277.95) (19,366.44)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (3,795.02) (24.29)
(Increase)/decrease in loan (6,016.94) (1.95)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-financial assets 30.74 181.69
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 9,086.78 21,918.83
Increase/(decrease) in other non-financial liabilities (8.59) 15.72
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 10.57 16.09
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations (1,624.15) 5,042.41
Income taxes paid, net of refund (1,434.64) (983.83)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities (A) (3,058.79) 4,658.58
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress - (3.68)
Interest proceeds from fixed deposit and treasury bills 4.02 558.97
Bank deposit placed (2,000.00) (49,548.00)
Redemption of bank deposits - 46,998.76
Investment in corporate deposits (2,000.00) -
Purchase of mutual fund (139,763.75) (51,204.92)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 139,664.49 51,837.74
Proceeds from sale of treasury bills - 47.76
Investment in subsidiary - (2,766.20)
Disinvestment is subsidiary 2,810.38 -
Net cash generated from/ (used) in investing activities (B) (1,284.86) (4,078.86)
Cash flows from financing activities

Borrowings and debt securities obtained 13,852.99 11,692.96
Repayment of borrowings and debt securities (9,271.10) (11,692.96)
Repayment for lease liabilities (3.87) (2.56)
Interest on overdraft facility and line of credit (112.55) (5.13)
Interest on Inter-company loan (72.83) (3.10)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities (C) 4,392.64 (10.79)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 47.98 569.93
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2,236.34 1,666.41
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,284.32 2,236.34




Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
Statement of cash flows

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Balances with banks in current accounts 2,284.32 2,236.34
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 3) 2,284.32 2,236.34

Notes:

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7)
Statement of cash flows.

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Groww Invest Tech Private Limited
Chyartered Accduntants (Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
Fifm Registratign Number: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U65100}EA2016PTC092879

1
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ohit Alexander Harsh Jain Nishant Singh
Director Director
Membership No. : 222515 DIN: 05321547 DIN: 09668714
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 27 , 2025 Date: June 27 , 2025 Date: June 27, 2025



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely knawn us Nextbillion Teclmology Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2015

(A1l amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwvise stated)

. Corperate Information

Groww Invest Tech Privale Limited {Formely known as Nexibillion Technolopy Private Lintited) (‘the Company’} incorporated as a private limited company on 41h May
2016 under the pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The company is incorposated ender the laws of India. The Company is is a registered Stock Broker and Deposilory
participant wnder Securities and Exchange Board of India, primarily engaged in the business of Stock broking services (including distribution of mutual fund) and Depository
services, The repistered office address of the Company is Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd floor, Sarjapur Main Road, Beitandur, Bengalure, Kamataka - 560143

2, Material accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation '
The financial statements of e Company comply in all material aspects with Indfan Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013
(the * Act’) read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2615 as amended from time to time and other retevant provisions of the Act,

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 1+ Presentation of Financial Statements as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Batance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented in the format prescribed under Division Ti of
Schedule 111 of the companies Act, as amended fron time to time that are required to comply with Ind AS, The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have been prepared under (he historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for certain Bnancial assets and liabilities.
The financial siatements are approved for issue by the Campany’s Board of Direciors on Jung 27, 2025

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except whers newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Company's financia! statements are presented in Indian Rapees (INR)/(Rs.), which is also its functional
curzency and atl values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are sel out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless athenvise stated.

a.  Property, plant and equipment
i, Recognition und measureitent

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment Josses, if any. Subsequent cosls are inchuded in the assel’s
carrying amount.

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are mel, and directly attributable
cost of bringing {he asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, piant and equipment is capitalized only when it is
probable that future ccononsic benefit associated with these will flow with the Company and the cost of the ilem can be measured retiabiy.

Capitat work-in-progress are property, plant and cquipment which are not yet ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstandiag al
each reporting date are shown as other non-financtal assets. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and instaliation is completed and
assels are ready for its intended use.

Items of Property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable vaius
and are shown separately in the financial statements, if any.

fi.  Depreciation

Depreciation provided on property, plant and cquipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful Jives specified in Schedule 1 of the
Act.

The estimated usefist lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the curent and comparative periods are as Joliows:

Asset Management's estimate of usefal Jife Useful life as per Schedule 1
Oftice equipments 5 years 5 years
Laptops 3 years 3 years

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis from {he date the assel is ready for ils intended use. In respect of assets sobd, depreciation is provided up to the date af
disposal. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of propesty, plant and equipment are reviewed ai the end of each financial year and changes
if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis.



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely lmown as Nexthillion Tectmology Private Limited)
Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2. Material accounting policies (continued)

. De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal er when no fiture economic benefits are expected fom ils vse or disposat.
Gains or Josses arising from de-recognition, disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the canrying amount of the asset and ase recognised net, within “Other Income” ar “Other Fxpenses”, as the case maybe, in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year of derecognition, dispasal or retirement.

b. Revenue from Contracts with customers

Revenue is measured at transaction price (net of variable consideration, if any). Revenue from contracis with customers is recognised when control of the geods or services
are transferted to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o wisich the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those poods ar services.

The Conspany recopnises revenue from contracts with cuslomers based on a five step model as set out in Tnd AS §15:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer; A contract is defined as an agreement between two or mose parties {hat creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the
criteria for every contract tha must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A perfermance abligation is a promise in 4 contract with a cuslomer to transfer a good or service to the customer,
Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the ameunt of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for tansfesring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on hehalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allacate the transaction price io the performance obfigations in the contract: Fer a contract that has mare than ane performance obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price fo each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects 10 he entitled in exchange for satisfying

each perfosmance obiigaiion.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation,

The Company recognises revenue fram the following sources:

{a) Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services on a teade date basis, in accordance with the terms of contract. There is only one
performance abligation of execition of the trade and settlement of the transaction which is satisfied at a point in time.

(b} Interest income on a financial asset including margin trading facility and deposits carried ai amortised cost is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount owlstanding and the effective interest rate (‘EIR™). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial assets through the expected
tife of the financiat assel or, where appropriate, a sharter period, to the net camrying amount of the financial instrurment. The intemal rate of retura on financial assets after
nelting off the tees received and cost incurred approximates 1he effective interest rate method of return for the financiat asset. The future cash flows are estimated taking into
account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The interest incone is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the

credil-impaired financial assets (i.e. the grass carvying amount less the ailowance for ECLs)

(¢)lncome from fees and commission income, tecks platform services and support services is recognised upon completion of services, in accordance with ihe terms of contract
which is satisfied at a point in {ime

(d) The Company has the right to considesation which is unconditional but an invoice for the same las not been eaised accordingly it is classified as unbilled revenue under
trade reccivabie.

Advances received fiom customers in respect of contracts ate treated as liabilities and adjusted against billing as per terms of the contract.
¢. Financial instruments
i Pate of Recognition

Financial assets and financial linbilities are recognised in the Company's balance sheet when the Compuny becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of the instrument.



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2, Material accounting poticies (continued)
i, Tnidtiee! Mewsurement

Financial assets and liabitities are initially recognised on the made date, i.e. the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Recognised financiaf instruments are initiaily measured at fair valse. Transaction costs that are directly altributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabikitées are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or finuncial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly
altributable to the acquisition of financiat assets or financial Jiabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

iti, Classification and Subsequemt Measurenient
A, Financiul assets

Based on the business made), the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where apprapriate, the Company classifies and measures financial
assets in the following categories :

a) Amortised cost: A financial assels is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the folfowing conditions and is not designated as at Fair value throngh profit er loss
{FVTPLY.
+ the asset is held within a business model whese objective is to hold assels to collect contractual cash flows ('Asset held to cellect contractual cash flows"); and
+ the contractual tarms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and intevest {SPPT) on the principal amount
autstanding.
After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business mode! as asset held 1o collect contractual cash flows and SPPL such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest 1ate ("EIR’) method. Interest income and impaienent expenses are recognised in prafit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or [oss.

The EIR tmethod is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocaling interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash tlows (incInding afl fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected lifs of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shoiter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b) Fair value through other comprehiensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are field within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractuat cash
flows and to sell the assets, (‘Contractua! cash flaws of assets collected through hold and sell model’) and contractual cash flows that are SPP1, are subsequently measured al
FVOCL Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Tncome (*QCI'), except interest / dividend income which is
recagnised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCI are subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss in case of debt instraments however, in case of equity
instruments it will be directly transferred to reserves. Equity instruments at FVOCT are not subject to an impairment assessment.

¢) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorisatien as at amortised cost or as FVOCI or either designated, are
measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair vilue are recogmised in profit or foss. The Company recerds investments in equity instuments and mutual funds at FYTPL.

Based on the Company’s business model for managing the investments, the Gronp has classified its investments and securities for trade at FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries
is carried at deemed cost as per Ind AS 27,

A fair value measurement of 4 non-financial asset takes into account a masket pasticipant’s ability 1o generate economsic Dbenefits by using the asset in its highest and best use
ar by selling it to another market participant hat would use the asset in its highest and best use.

B. Financial lebilities

Debt and equity instruments issued hy the Company are classified as either financial fiabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and e definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(a) Equily Iusirument - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity afler deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company is recognised at the value of proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

{b) Financial Liabilities - Financial liabilities are measured al amortised cast. The carrying amounts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently determined based
on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss en de-recognition of financial liabifitées is also recognised in profit or loss. The Company
does not have any financial fiability which arc measured at FVTPL.

Financial Tiabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effcctive interest rate method, For trade and other payables, the carrying amount approximates the fair value due to
short malturity of these instrumenis.



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
Nofes to the financial statenents for the year ended March 31, 2025

2. Material accounting policies {continued)
In order Lo show how fair values have been derived, financial instrements are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 12 Those where the inputs used in the valuation are wnadjusted guated prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volsme and fiquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 : Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are signiftcant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable markel data available over the entire period
of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant (¢ the measurement as whole.

iv. Roclassiffeution:
Financial assets and liabilities are not reclassified subseqguent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which 1he Company acquires, disposes
of, or terminates a business line or in the period the Company changss its business modet for managing financial assets and financial liabilities.

w. Derecognition:
(A} A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simélar financial assels) is derccognised when:
« The contractuat rights 1o receive cash fows from the financial asset have expired, or
« The Compatsy has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Company has transferred substantially alt the risks and rewasds of the asset, or the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has transfecred control of the asset.

IF the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises
its relained interest in the asset and an associated liahility for the amount it may have to pay.

On derecognstion of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount atlocated to the portion of the asset derecognised}
and the sem of (i) the consideration received {including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (if) any cumuiative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OC) is recognised in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured at FVQOCI).

{B) A financial iability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabilisy is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an exisling financial lability is replaced by
another from the same lender on subsiantially diffecent terms, er the ferms of an existing fability are substaatiatly modified, such an exchange or modification is ireated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the recogmition of a new liability. In this case, a new financial liabifity based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
The difference between the cartying value of the eriginal financial liability and the new financial liabifity with madified terms is recognised in prefit or loss.

vi, Offvetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offse and the net amount presested in the balance sheet when, and ouly when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settfe them an a net basss or to yealise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

vit. Ympadrment of financial assels:

A. Trade receivables
The Cempany applics the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measuring expected credit fosses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowanee based on lifetime ECLs
at each reparting date, right frem its initial recognition.

To measure the expected eredit losses, trade receivables have been prauped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expecied loss rates are based
on average of historical loss rate adjusted to seftect cusrent and available forward looking information affecting the ability of the customers to sellle the receivables.

B, Loans
Far financial services business, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when these has been a significant inczease in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the othier hand,
the credit risk on the financial insteument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowange for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12 month ECL. The assessient of whether lifetime ECL should be recogrised is bused on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition. A 12 month ECL represents the portian of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from defanlt cvents on a financial insirument that are possible
within 12 months after the reperting date.

B. Other Financiet Assefs
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows,

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (cither partially or in full} o the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recavery. This is generally the case
when the Company determines that the deblor does nol have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject (o the wrile -
off. However, financial assets that are written off could stifl be subject to enfoscement activities under the Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recopaised in profit or loss,




Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statentents fox the year ended March 31, 2025

2. Material accounting policies (continued)
d.  Employee Benefits
i, Shari-term employee bonefits

Short-term employee benefits include salaries and short-term bonus. A liability is recognised if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a vesult of past service provided by the employee, and the obigation can be estimated reliably. ‘These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
at the undiscounted amount expected to he paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the Company.

fi. Gratuity
Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is
payable at the time of separation from the Company o retirement, whichever is carlier. The benefit vest after five years of continuous service.

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net oblipation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that the employees have eamed in return fos their service in the current and prior period. Such benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair
value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit Method which recognises each period
of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and nteasures each unit separately to build up the final obligation,

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash fiows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are bused on the market yields on
Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptiens are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included i retained eamings i the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
il Provident find

The conteibutien to provident fund is considered as defined contiibution plan. The Company has no abligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service,

f Share based payment arraiggemienty

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted 1o empioyees is measured by reference to the fair value of the options using opticn
pricing model at the date on which the options are granted and generally recognised as an employee benefits expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
vesting period of the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adsusted to reflect the number of awards for which the relaled service conditions are expected to be
met, such that the amount witimately recognised is hased on the number of awasds that meet the related service conditions at the vesting date.

The fair vaue is expensed over the period until the vesting dale with recognition of a corresponding liability to pay holding company based on a cost recharge arrangement.

e, Borrewing costs

Expenses related to borrowing cost are acconnted using effective interest rate. Borrowing costs are interest &nd other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreigm
currency harrowings 1o the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the bomawing of funds. Barrowing costs directly
attributabie 1o acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time ta get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are recogaised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The difference between the discounted amount mobilised and
redempticn value of commercial papers is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the life of the instiument using the EiR.

f. Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the teansaction. Exchange differences arising on sciilement of revenue
transactions arc recogniscd in the statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in forcign currencies are restated at the rate of exchange mling at the
Balance Sheet date. Non-manctaty assets and Habilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign cumency are translated into the functional currency ut the exchange rate
when the fir value was determined. Nor-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a toreign currency are transfated at the exchange rate at
the date of the leansaction.

g Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or confains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the amangement is dependent on the uge of a specific assel or assets of whether the arrangement conveys a tight 1o nse the asset. The Company assesses whether
a contract conining a lease, at inception of 3 cantract. A contract is, or coatains, a lease if the condract conveys e right to control the nse of an identified asset for a peried of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract cenveys (he right ta contred the use of an identified assets, the Company assess whether (i) the contract
involves the nse of an identified assets; (i) the Conspany has substantially all the ecenomic benefits from use of the assels through the peried of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the cight to direct the use of the asset.

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recaghises a right-af-use assets (ROU) and a corresponding fcase liability for all lease arrangenients in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of' [2 month or less (short-term leases} and fow value leases. For these shori-term and low value Seases, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over (he term of the lease.




Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely lmawn as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statentents for the year ended March 3, 2025

2. Material accounting policies (continued})

Certain lease arrangements includes the aptions to extend or terminate the fease before the end of the fease termy. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when
it is reasonably certain that 1hey will be exercised.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amtount of the initial measurement of the fease liability, any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease,
less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-usc assets is measured at cost less any aceumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The
right-of-use assels is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date aver the shorter of [ease term or usefil lite of right-of-use assets.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liabitily at the present value of the lease paymenis that are not paict al that date. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that sate is readily determined. 1 that rate is not readily determined the lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate,

Lease liability has been included in borrewing and ROU assct has been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have heen clasgsified as financing
activifies in the statement of cash fows.

h.  Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaties are measured at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
1. Provisions, contingent Jiabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a resul¢ of a past event and it is probable that an cutflew of embodying economic benefits wili be
required to settie the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amoutst of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
scltle the present oblipation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions ave determined by discounting the expected fiture cash fiows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to setile the present abligation at the balance sheet date) al a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valie of money and the
risks specific {o the liability. Provisions arc reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to effect coreent management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recogaised but arc disclosed in the notes forming part of restated consolidated financial statements. A Contingeat liability is a possible
abligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurence or nen-cecurence of ane or more uncertain future events not wheolly withis
the control af the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recomised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
econamic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obléigation cannot be measured with sufficient reliabitity. Contingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the sestated consolidated financial statements,

j.  Imcome Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recopnised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity
orin OCL.

(D) Current Tux

Cwirent tax is measured at the amount expected te be paid in respect of taxable income using lax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax
comprises the expected tax payable on the faxable income or Loss for the year and any adiustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

Current income tax relating 1o items recognised outside profil or foss is recognised outside piofit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equigy). Current tax
items are recagnised in cowelation to the underlying transaction cither in OCE ar direcily in equity. Management pesiodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with
respect 1o situations i which appiicable lax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Curtent tax assets and current tax liabilities ase ofset only if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amoutits, and it intends Lo realise the asset
and settle the Hability on a net basis or simuliancously. :

(i) Deferred Tux

Defeseed tax is recognised in respect on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements
Deferred tax assels arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and wnabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are recognised only if there is reasonable certainty of its
realisation, supported by convincing evidence.

Deferred tax assets on account of ather temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income wili be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.



Groww lnvest Tech Private Limited (Fovmely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
Noles {o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2. Material accounting policies {continued)

Deforred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rafes and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, Changes in deferved tax
assets / liabilitics on account of changes in enacted tax rates are piven effect to in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the change. The carrying anount
of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date,

Deferred tax agsets and deferred ax liabilities are off set when there is a legaliy enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the
deferred tax assets and deferred dax Halilities relate to taxes on income Jevied by the same governiny taxation laws.

k  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in curreat accounts, demand deposits with banks, other shori-term highly liquid investments with
eriginal maturities of three months or fess that arc readily convertible 1o known amoutits of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the
purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivatents cash and short-term deposits are considered integral part of the Company’s cash management.

1. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and eash equivalents includes fixed deposits with banks with original maturities of twelve months or less.

m.  Impaivment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is impaired when the canying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss
is reversed to the extent that the assef's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that woeuld have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been
recognised.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net seiling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, anless the asset does not generale cash inflows that are fargely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the canying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds fts recoverable amount, fhe asset is considered impaired and is writien down to its recaverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated futuce
cash Hows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax disconnt rate that reflects cusrend market assesssuents of the time value of money and the risks speciic to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used.

n, Segment reporting

The holding company prepares the consolidated financial statements. Hence, in accordance with Ind AS 108 on operating segments, the Company has not disclosed the
segments information in the standalene financial statements.

o. Earnings pershare

The Company reports basic and diluted eamings per equity share. Basic earnings per equity share have been compated by dividing net profitftoss attributable to the equity
share holders for the year by the weiglted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the year. Diluted eamnings per equity share have been computed by dividing the
net profit attributable to the equity share helders afler giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares far the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilwtive patential equity shares outstanding during the period/fyear, except where the sesulis are anti-dilutive.

p.  Statement of cash Tlows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactéions of u non-cash naturc und any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from repular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are sepregated.

(. Business Combination

Business comsbinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method as at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which controi is transferred to the Company.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. When the Company acquires a
business, il assess the financial assets and labilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation. In accordance with contractual terms, ecanomic circumstances,
and pertinent conditions as at acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the interest in the fair value of the identifiable nel assets acquired and attributable to
the owaers of the Company is recorded as goodwilf, The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at the
acquisition date fair value and the amount of a non-conteolling interest in the acquire. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business acquisition are expensed as
and when incurred. Any conténgent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Snbsequent changes in the fair value of contingent cansideration
are recognised in $tandafone Statement of Profit and Loss. Comtingent consideration that is classified as equity is nol remcasured and subsequent setilement is accounted for
within equity.

Business comhinations invelving entities or businesses under common control shaf] be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.
If 2 business combination is achieved in slages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is se-measured at ils acquisition date fair value and any resulling gain or
loss is recognised in profit or toss or OCI, as appropriate.

Goodwilt is tested for smpainent annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied Jair value is less than its carrying amount.



Groww Invest Tech Private Limifed (Formely known as Nextbillion Technolegy Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025

2. Material accounting policies (confinued)

r, Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires that the management make estimates and assumplions that affect the application of accounting
policics and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and vaderlying assumplions are
reviewed an an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized praspectively in current and future years. In particular, informatien about areas of
significant estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting palicies that have a significant eftect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
are included below;

(i) Depreciation and mmpriization

Depreciation and amordisation is bused on management estimates of the futare useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assels. Estimates may change
due to technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may eesult in changes in the estimated uscful life and in the depreciation
and amottisation charges,

{ify Recagnition amd measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumpions, Key acluarial assumptions include discount rate, wrends in salary
escalation, actuarial rates and fite expectancy. The discount rate is detesmined by reference to market yielids at the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-cimployment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation and
its Long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumpions.

(iti) Puir value of finauciel instramants

Financial instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in ind AS 109 and Ind AS 113. Being a critical estimate, judgement is exercised to
determine the carrying values. The fair valuc of financial instraments that are unlisted and not traded in an active market is determined a1 fair values assessed based on recent
transactions entered inta with third parties, based on valuation done by exteral appraisers etc., as applicable.

{iv) Expected credit losses on financial assefs

The Company recogtizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured af amortized cost. At each repording date, the Company assesses whether
financial assels carried at amortized cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is “credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have ocenrred.

(v) Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporasy differences between the carying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deterred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that Future faxable income will be availabie against which the deductible temporary
differences could be utilized. Further details are disclosed in Note 26.

vi) Provision and contingencies

The secognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the reporting date. The actuak outflow of resources at a fulure date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisiens.

(vii} Shure based paymenis

Estimaling fair value for share hased payment requires determination of the most approptiate valuation model, The estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option , volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and
medels used for estimating fair value for share based payments ransactions are discussed in Note 32 "Employee stock option plan” {ESOP).

(viii} Leases

In determining whether an arrangement is, or containg a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assels and the astangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in the arrangement.

s. Operating cycke
Based on the time involved between acquistion of assels for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has indentified twelve months as ils
operating cycle for determining carrent and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

t. Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 17 Insurance Conlracts and amendments to ud AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and
leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. 0L April 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronauncements and based on its evaluation has determined that
it does not have any impact in its firancial statements,



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
Nutes to the financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions uniess othenwise siaied)

3 Cash and cash cquivalents

As at
Alarch 31, 2025

As al

March 31, 2024

Balances with banks - In current accounts 2,284.32 2,236.34
Tatal 2,284.32 2,236.34

4 Bank baluuces other than cash and cash equivalenis

As at As at

March 31,2025  March 34, 2024

Fixed Deposits with Banks having less thas 12 moenths

original maturity*

- Earmarked balances 36,844.18 30,366.23
Total 36,844.18 30,566.23

#Fixed deposits with Barks have been lien marked with clearing corparatiens ameunled to INR 36,020 {March 31, 2024: INR 30,080). Further, fixed depaosits with Banks have
been placed as collateral security against bank overdraft facility amounted to INR 35 (Macch 31, 2024: INR 100)

ta

Trade receivables

As at
March 31, 225

Asat

March 3§, 2024

Trade receivahles

Unsecured, Considered good 896.88 628.89

Unsecured, credit impared 95.47 3572

Loss Allowance

Unsecured, credit impared {95.47) {35.72)
Total 896.88 628.39

No trade or other receivables are due From directors or others officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade or ather receivable are due
from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member except as disclosed in note 31.

Trade Receivables Ageing

Outstanding as at March 3§, 2025 for following periods from date of transaction

Particilars Total
Less than 6 6 menths - J year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears
months
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 598.59 - - - - 59859
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — credil smpatred 61.26 1.50 3029 1.30 1.14 95,48
Less: Impainnent loss allowance (61.26) (1.50}) (30.29) (L0} {114} {95.48)
Add: Unbilled revenue 298.25
Totak 806,88
Trade Receivablcs Ageing
i e 024 1 ing peri - i

Particulars Outstnnding us nt March 31, 2624 for lollowing periods from date of transaction Total

Less than & month| 6 months - | year 1-2 years .3 years Mare than 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered gaod 451,76 45).76
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired 6.45 649 1522 1.63 3.93 3572
Less: Impainnent loss allowance 3512y
Add: Unbilled revenue 177.43
TFotal 628,89




Groww bnvest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
Notes to the finnncinl statements for the year ended March 3£, 2025

(Al amonnts are i INR Millions unless othenvise skated)

&

Inyestments

Asat
March 31, 2028

Asat
March 31,2024

Measured at fair value (hraugh profit or Juss

Investment in Mutual funds - quoted 619,26 323 96
Investment in equity instruntent (subsidiary) sl fair valne through other comprehensive income - unquoted*
Groww IFSC Private Limited 18,56 1348
Grovew Assel Management Limited - 2,750.20
Groww Trustee Limited - 16.00
Totat 438.76 3,109.64
Investmenls in India 638.76 3,109.64
Tnvestments outside India - -
Tolal 638.76 3,109.64
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 18,50 2,785.68
Aggregale amount of quoted investment and market value thereof 61926 32396
* The Company has elecled 10 measure investment in subsidiaries at deemed cost as per Ind AS 27, Refer note 23,

7 Louan (uf amortived cost)

Asat Asal

&

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Secured, considered gaod

Miarch 31, 2023

Margin trading facility 6,013.8% 1.95
Total 6,018.8¢ 1,95
Secured by fungible asseiy

Collateral in the form of securities 61889 1.95
Total 5,018.89 1.95
Loans in Tndia 6,018.89 1.65
Loans culside India - .
Total 6,018.89 1.95
There are no outstanding loans to directors, KMP and other related parlies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Other financinl assets
Asad Asg at

March 31, 2024

(Uhnsecitred, considered gond)

Securily deposit with exchanges/depasilaries 2154 17.34
Fixed Deposits with Banks having more than 12 months
original maluriy*
-Farmarked balances 6,994.27 5,614.34
-Apainst bank guarantes 2,083.82
Fixed deposits with financial institulions 201539 -
jnyestment in carporate deposits 2,020.77 -
Rental deposit 9.86 3.00
Receivable from related paties {refer note 31} 392 10.94
Advances to cmployees 1.54 347
Receivable from paynient aggregators and clearing comporations 4,807.04 479.63
Total £7,958.15 113,129.22

F{edd deposits with Banks have been Tien naarked with clearing corporations amounted 1o [NR 7,010 {March 31, 2024: 7,232). Further, fixed deposils with Banks have been

placed as collateral security against bank overdrafl facility amounted to INR 1,820 . (March 31, 2024 2,170).

(This space is feft hitensionatly blank)
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Groww Iuvest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextlillion Technalogy Private Limited)
Naotes to the financial statements far the year emded March 31, 2025

(AH amornts are in INR Millions unfess otherwise stated}
10 Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel for a peried of time in exchange for consideration.
Company ay a lessee

The Company’s lease asset class consists of fease for a premise, The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a
cantract conveys the right 10 control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the conteact invelves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company
has substantially all of the econamic benefits fram use of he asset through the periad of the lease and {iii) the Company has the right 1o direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset {“ROU") and a correspanding lease lability for all lease arrangements in which it
is a lessee, axcept for lcases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and Jow value leases.

For these short-term and low value leases, the Company secoguizes the [ease payments as an operaling expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The
company has not recognised any short term leases.

Certain lease arrangements includs the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU asscts and lease liubilities includes these options
when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus any initial direct costs.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Rightrof-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease Tiability is initizlly mensured at amortized cost at the present value of the future fease payments. The lease payments arc discounted using the incremental
borrewing rate of the company. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment
on whetler it will exercise an extension or a terminatien opticn.

Lease liability and ROV asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments of INR 3.87 miltions {(March 31, 2024 INR 2,56 millions) have
been classified as cash flow generated from financing activity.

a) Carrying value of vight of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class

Particulars Asal As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening Balance - 23.37
Additions 57.00 -
Derecognition (1.78} (20.54)
Deprecistion (4.50) {2.83)
Total 50,72 -

b) Carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

As at As at
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

At the commencement of the year - 24.°M
Additions 34 25 -
Reduction in liability (1.81) (23.05)
Accretion of intesest 0.72 Q.87
Payments (3.15} {2.56)
At the end of the year 50.01 -

¢} Maturity analysis of lease lizhilities
Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscounted cash flows Marcl‘:\;la.‘lﬂls ]\'Inrc:; l",t2024
Eess than one year 18.60 .
One to five years 40.04 -

More than five years

Tola! undiscounted fease fiabilities

58,64




Groww Invest Tech Frivate Limited (Formely known as Nexthillion Technology Privite Limited)

Motes to the financial statemsents for the year ended March 31, 2025

(AN amotnts are in INICMitlons unfess offienwise stated)

11 Other non-fimancial assets

Az ai
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

flnsecured, considered pood)

Balances with govermiment authonlies 6,72 56.77
Prepaid expenses 46,39 40.69
Advances to suppliers G904 5543
(Unsecured, considered doubiful}
Advanges o suppliers 0.4 3,28
Loss allowance on advance 1o supplier (0.04} (1,28}
Toral 122,15 152,39
1z Trade payables
Asml Asal
Marech 31, 2025 Maech 31, 2024
Talal oulstonding dues of micro enlerprises and sniall enterprises 0.0y ROG
Tolal owlstanding dues of czedilors other than micro enfesprises and small enterprises
- Payalite o relaied parties 3,002.90 6,941,530
- Other trade payable 43.889.33 30.86{1L10
Talak 46,491,30 37,801 .66
Trade Fayables Ageing
As at 31 March, 2025
Pariicukars Outsianding for following periods fram due date of payment Tatal
Eass than [ year 1-2 yeary 23 yeur More than 3 years
(i) MSME o7 - - - 007
Others 44,265.58 040 - - 44,265,983
(i) Dispuled Dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Dispuled Dues- Others - - - - -
(v Unbilizd - - - - 1,626.25
Tetal 44,265,685 040 - - 46,892 30
Trade Payables Apeing
As at 31 March, 2024
Particulars Qut tng For following periods from dae dute of payment o
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 year More than 3 years ot
() MSME 0.06 - - B 0.06
(#) Others 12,36112 212 - . 12,363.24
(#i) Disputed Dues- MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed Dues- Others . - - - -
(v) Unibilled . - - - 25,438.34
Total 12,361.18 .12 - - 37,80L.66
13 Provisions
Asat Asat
March 3L, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for gralufy .77 23,50
Total 30,77 23.59
14A Debi securities
As at Asal

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

At Amuortised Cost
Secured

Nowconverlible debentures 49122 -
Tuterest on Non- converible debentures 15.87 -
Totnl 1,007.09 -
Delt securities i India 1,007.09 -
Debt secwrities oulside India - N
Tatat {A} LO07,09 .
Debi securitics {Secured)
Termts of repayent As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 3£, 2024
Bullel repay 951,22 -
Total 99121 -

Security and ather terms of (e debt securities ave as follows :

i The tate of interest on the non-convertible debentures is 10% p.a for (he year ended 31 March, 2025 and Nil fos the year ended 31 March, 2024,

i, Mon-convertible debestures are for o perind of 1§ months anl repayable upon maturily.

i Non-comvertible debentares are secured by specific charge on margis trading find books wider Loan provided. The Company has maintained the required securily cover with respecet to ils secured

borrawings.



Groww Tnvest Tech Piivate Limited {Furmely known as Nextbillion Techinulogy Private Limited)
Notes t¢ the fnarcial statements for (be year ended March 31, 1025

(Al amomis are in INR Millions unless otfenvise skatedd)
148 _Rorrowings {other ihan debt securilies)

Asal As at

March 3F, 2025 March 31, 2024

At Amortised Cost

Secured

Term loans frem financial institution 1,550.67 -

Interest on term loans from financinl inslitation 15,77 -

Un-Secured

Inter carporate loans from refated parties 2, (K. -

Interesl on intercompany lodiy 3573 -

Total (A) 3,642.17 -

Borrowings in India 364217 -

Borrowings outside [ndia - -

Totat (A) 3,642.17 -

Term Laan fram Financial Ingtitution (Secured)

Teris of repayment As at Adal
March 34, 2015 Mazrch 31, 2024

Budlel repayment 1,398.67 -

‘Total 1,598.67 -

Inter corporate loans feam related parties (Unsecared)

Texms af repayinent As al As at
March 3, 2025 Afarch 31, 2024

Ixepavablz vn demand 2,000.00 -

Total 2.000,00 -

Sectrity and other tesms of the loans are as follows ;

i. The rate of interest on Lhe borrowings [rom financial instilutions vary from 10% pate 10.2% p.a payable ona monthly basis for the yzar ended 31 March, 2025 and Nil for the year ended 34 March, 2024

ii. The rale of interest on the horowings from inter corporate toan is 8.05% payable on yearly basis for he year ended 31 Marcls . 2025 and Nil for 1he year ended 35 March, 2024
4. Term toans from linancial istilutions are repayabte alter 1 year [rom the date of availment of foan.
iv. Inter corporale loans fror relnted pariies are repayable afler 1 year from Lhe dale of avaiineat of foon, lurther such repayment will be on demand.

v. Tenn loans [rom fascials mstilutions are secured by specific charge an margin rading fund books under Loan provided. The Company fas nainlained the 1equired security cover with espect Lo ts

secured bormrowings.

vi. Ters Loans were used fully Tor the purpose for which the same were oblained.

yit. There were no default in the repayniem of borowings.

vili. The amownt disclosed above in lerms of repaynwent represent the principat outstanding as al 31 March 2025 and as al 31 March, 2024,

ix. The quarterly slatennls os returns of current assets filed by the company with financial institutions are il agzecinent with books of accounts

15 Other non-fisancial liabilities

As at Asat
March 3, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statulory Dues payable 134.23 14282
Total 134.23 142,82

Ths space hay been loff blank infentionally



Groww Invest Tech Private Lisited (Formely known a8 Nextbition Fechnology Privite Limited}
Notes to the financial statements far the year ended March 31,2025

(A amoums are in INR Milions unless otherwise stated)

16 Share capital

Asat
March 31, 2024

Ay at
March 31, 2025

Authorised share capital

1,28,70,630 Equily Shares of Rs 10 (March 31, 2024; 1,28 70,630 equity shares) 124.71 12871
7,12,937 Compulsory Convertible Non-Cunntlative preference shares {Muorch 31, 2024: 71.29 71.2%
7.12,537) ef Rs. 100 each
Tolak 200,080 200.00
Fssued, subscribed and puid-up share capital
66,235,463 Equity shares of Rs_ 10 each (Manch 31, 2024 66,25,463) 066.23 66,25
Tatal 66,25 66.25
{n) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the veporting year
As it March 3, 2025 Asat March 31, 2024
Namhber Amourtt
Equity shares
Al the commencement of the vear 6,625,463 66.25 6,625,465 66,25
Add: Tssued during the vear - - -
Af the end of the year 6,625,465 46,25 6,625,465 G6.25

(b) Termushighes autached ta equity shares
The Company has only
share captal. The holder of the equity shares shall be entitled to dividend as and when declared by the Company

one class of aquity share. having a par value of R 10 et share. Every member holding equity

shares therein shall have voting rights in prepartion to their share of the paid up equity
in proportion Lo the members of shate hetd. Th the event of liquidation of the Company, lhe

liolders of the equity shares will be entitled to share in the residual assets ol the Company. "The distribution will b in praportien te lhe number of equity shares held,

{c} Particulars of Shares held by kolding! ultimate holding company and/ or thetr subsidiaries/ associates:

Name of the shareholler

As at
March 31, 2028

As ut

March 3L, 3024

Equity shares with voting rights

Rillionbrains Garage Ventures Limiled (formerly know as Billionhraing Garage Ventures Private Limiled)
Harsh Jain (As nominee of Billionbrains Garage Yentures Limited (formerly kaovin as Billionbrains Garage
Venluras Limiled)

(d) Parvticubars of sharcholders holding mare than 5% shares of a class of shares

6623464 6,625,460
1 1

As at March 31, 325

Asat March 31,2024

Name of the shareholder Nursber of shares held % lendding  Number of shaves held % holding
Equity shares
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formerly known ns Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited) 6,625,401 100% 6,625,461 180%
{e) Particulars of sBarcholding
As at March 31, 2025 As af March 31, 2024
Name of the sharcholder Nuntber of shares helil " Number af shares held .
% holding % hplding
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Litmited {fometly known as Billionbrains Garnge Venlures Private Limited) 6,625,464 1O0.00% 6,625,460 100, %5
Lalil Keshre - 0.00%, L 0.00%
Harsh Sain - 0.00% L 0.00%
Neeraj Singh - {.00% 1 0.00%
{shon Bansal - 130% 1 0,00%
Hatsh Jain (Nomince of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formerly known os Bilionbiains Garage H 0.00% 1 0.00%
Venlures Privale Limiled})
(fy Apgregate number of shares issued for consideration other than casls dusing the period of five yeast imiediately preceding (he reporiing date
There are no shares oflatted as flly paid by woy o bonus shares or alloted as flly paid up pursuant 1o conlract withoul consideration other than cash, or bowght back during (hie period of five years
immediately preceding the repotting date except os stated below
(i) During (he year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has sssied 1,540,140 Tuily paid up Bonus Shares of s, 10/~ each and the Compary bas ulilised Securitics Premium for llse issue of bonus shares.
Detalls of Allofment of Donus skares
Naeme of the sharchafder Naumber of shares Amount
Harsh Jain 37875 3719
Isan Bansal 23230 233
Lalit Keshre 54,375 5444
Negraj Singh 34,500 3.43




Groww bnvest Tech Private Limited (Formcly known as Nextbillion: Techaology Private Limited)
Naics to the financial statentents for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025

(Al amotnis are i INIE Mitlions wnfess oterwise stated)

17 Other equity

Asal Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained camings {) 7,827.64 3,707.08
Securilies preminm {ii) 500076 510076
Debeniure redemption 1esene (i) 300,00 -
Tatak 13.028.40 $.807.84
{i) Retained einmings
As sl
As at
argl
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the cammencement of the year 30708 73328
Add: Profit for the year 421817 2,977.51
Add: Re-nxasurement gainsilosses) on defined employee benefit plans (net of lax) 239 (3.73}
Less: Debenture redemplion reserve crealion {100.00) -
Ralance at 4he eed of the year 782764 3,707.08
(i} Secorifies premium
Asat Asat
Particul: Tar '
articulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 1024
Ralance 24 the commencement of the year 3,100.70 5,1680.76
Add: Premium received on issue of equily shares - -
ILalance at the endt of the year 5,100.76 5,100,786
{iit) Dehentare rederuption reserve
PFarticalar Asat As al
e March 31, 2825 March 31, 2024

DBalance st the commencement of the year
Add: reverse crested for the issue of non- convetible debeniure 100, 1K) -

Closiug halance £0D.00 -

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Retained eurnings:
The cumulative gain ar loss arising (rom Lhe operations which is relained by (he Corpany 13 recognised and accumlated under the heading “Retained Eamings™. Al the end of Lhie vear, the profit (loss) afler
inx is transferred from (he stalement of profit and logs Lo relained earnings.

i) Securities premium
Securities premivn is used fa record the premium on issve af shares. The reserve can be ulilised only for linsted purpose in accordance with the provisions al the Companies Acl, 2013

() Debenture redanption reseive
As per Section T1(4) of the Conspanies Act, 2013, read with Rule 18(7) of the Companies (Share Capital And Debenlures) Rules, 2014, the Company is required create a Debenture Redemption Reserve
(DRI} lowards the issue of redeemable non-cenvertible debentures



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited {Formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amaunis are in INR Millions unless otherwise staled)

18

20

21

22

13

Intevest income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income on tinancial assets meusured a1 amortised cost ©
(i) Fixed deposits with banks earmarked with stock exchange 3,199.80 1,902,24
Marpin tsading fund 479,75 -
Total 3,6'79.61 1,902.24

Fees and commission income

For the yeur ended

For the year ended

March 3£,2025 March 31, 2024
Fees and commission income 32,970.61 23,604.67
Total 32,970.61 23,604.67

Disaggregation of Revenue from Qperutions

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2625 Marchi 31, 2024
Geographical markets
Within India 32,970.61 23,604 67
Quitside India - -
Total 31,976.61 23,604,67
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 32,970.61 23,604.67
Services transferred over lime - -
Total 32,9761 23,604.67

Net gain on fair value changes

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2025 Mareh 31, 2024
On financial insteuments designated at fair value through profit or loss on investments :
(i) Realised pain on sale of swutual fund, net 165.36 83.35
(5i) Unrealised gain on musual find, net 30,76 12,75
Total 196,12 96.10
Qther income

Far the yesr ended

For the year ended

March 31,2025 Muarch 31, 2024
Enterest income on financial assels measured at amortised cast :
(i} Fixed deposits with banks from treasury funds 7.1 .42
(ii) Interest on unwinding of security deposits 0.19 0.14
(idi} Interest on inter-corparate deposits 23.08 -
Other incatne 51.5% 1151
Tatal 91.92 13.07

Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 10) 0.72 0.87
Interest on overdraft facility 1.80 5.3
Enterest on [uter-company loan 108.56 3.i0
interest on Borrowings 124 87 -
Interest on Debt securities 17.52 -
Tatal 253.47 9.10

Employee henefits expense

For the year ended

For theyear ended

Muareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, allowances, incentives and banus 852.15 656.30
Contsibution to pravident and ather funeds 912 7.55
Share based paymenis 98.54 40.30
StafT weifare expenses 2087 12.51
Gratuily §1.18 1.87
Tatal 991,86 724.53




Graww [nvest Teeh Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbitlton Technology Private Limited)
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(AN amounts are in INR Mitlions unfess ofherwise sigied)

24

15

Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 3{,2025 Murch 31, 2024
Depreciation on praperty, plant and equipment 3.08 3.81
Depreciation on siglt of use assels 4.50 2.83
Talal 7.58 6.64

Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2028 March 31, 2024

Professional and consulting charges 506.17 377.69
Transaction and other related charges 1,127.58 610.82
Soflware, server and platform charges 28,235.41 19,764.23
Rent and maintenance 65.84 59.22
Commniisnication expenses 487 3.30
Rates and taxes 3.02 9.76
Travelling and conveyance expenses 310 277
Marketing and business promotion expenses 0.04 48.76
Paymenis to Auditor

-Statutory Andit 3.50 248

~Tax Audit 0.30 0.25

-Others 0.10 -
Director's sitling fee 8.28 2.00
Bank charges 100 0.72
Fareign exchange losses (net) 006 0.39
Cerporate Social Responsibility (refer note 37) 33.60 7.07
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.59 -
Tatal 29,991.86 2(,,889.46

This space has heen lefi blank intentionally



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nextbillion Technelogy Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
26 Income Taxes

A. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax
In respect of current period 1,428.22 1,005.74
Relating to earlicr years - 3.28
Total current tax expense 1,428.22 1,009.02
Deferred tax
In respect of current period (12.47%) (3.60}
TFotal deferred tax expense {12.42) {3.60)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 1,415.80 1,005.42
Incame tax expenses recognised in OCI
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans 3139 (4.99)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1.00) 1.26
Total 2.39 (3.73)

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Profit befare tax 5,633.97 3,982.95
Tax at Indian tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2024 - 25.168%) 1,417.96 1,802.43
Effect of
Tax on expense not tax deductible 26.25 1§.13
Others (27.41) (9.40}
Total tax expensc 1,416.80 1,004.16
C. Current tax assets and lailities (nef)

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax assels {net) 9.6l -
Current tax liabilities {net} - 2,19
D. Deferred Tax

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax linhilities
Unrealised gait on invesiments carried at fair value through profit or loss (7.74) (320
Total deferred tax liabilities (7.74) (3.21)
Deferred tax assets
Property plant and cquipment 0.50 0.26
Disallowance of expenses 3L 16.54
Eease liabilities 0.46 -
Total deferred tax assets 32.75 16.80

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 25.01 13.59




Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely known as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited)
Notes to {he financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise staled)

26 Income Taxes (continned)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):

For the year ended 31 March 2025 As at 1 April 2024 Recognised in profit Recognised in OCI Asat 31 March
or loss 2025
Deferred tax liability on:
Unrealised gain on securities carried at
fair value through profit or loss / other comprehensive income (3.21) (4.53) - (1.74)
Gross deferred {ax liabilities (3.21} (4.53) - (7.74)
Deferred tax assets on:
Property plant and equipment (.26 0.24 - 0.50
Disallowance of expenses 16.54 15.25 - 31.79
On carry forward of losses - - - -
Lease .- 0.46 - .46
Gross deferred tax assets 16.50 15.95 - 32,758
Net deferred tax (liahilitics)/assets 13.59 11,42 - 25.01
For the year ended 31 March 2024 As at 1 April 2023 Recognised in profit Recognised in OCI As at 31 March
or loss 2024
Deferred tax liability on:
Unrealised gain on securities carried at
fair value through profit or loss / other comprehensive income . (0.85) (2.36) - (3.21)
Gross deferved tax liabilities (0.85) (2.36) - {3.21)
Deferred tax assets on:
Property plant and equipment 0.12 0.14 - 0.26
Eisallowance of expenses 8.79 7.75 - 16.54
(n carry forward of losses - - - -
Lease 0.67 (0.67) - -
Grass deferred tax assefs 9.58 7.22 - 16.840
Net deferred tax (Jiabilities)/assets 8.73 4,86 - 13.59

This space has been lefi blank intentionally
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(AN amonnts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
27 Employee benefit obligations

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution are made to Pravident fund in India for employees. The contributions are made 1o registered Psovident fund administered by the Goveenment.
The expenses recopnised during ihe period towards defined contribution plan is [NR 9.12 Millions fos the year ended March 31, 2025 (INR 7.55 Miltions for
the year ended March 31, 2024).

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who arc in continuous service for a petiod of
5 years are cligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on refirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic safary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Parficulars

Currenf Non-cuyrent Current Non-current
Gratuity 638 24.39 2.78 20.81
Tatal employee benefit obligations 6.38 24,39 278 10.81

(i} Reconciliation of apening and closing halances of Defined Benefit Obligation
Asan As on

. Mareh 31, 2025 March 3§, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at beginning of year 23.58 2.35
Current service cost 9.53 170
Interest cost 1.65 0.7
Actuariai loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income
a) changes in demographic assumpison (6.42) -
9) changes in financial assumptions ' 2.49 0.12
¢) experience adjustments 0.54 4,87
Teansfer In / (Out) 0.47) 8.37
Benefits paid {0.13) -
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at year endl 30,77 23.58

(tiy Expenses recognised during (he year

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current service cost 9.53 770
Interest cost 1.65 0.17
Expenses recognised in Profit and loss 11.18 7.87

(i) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Tucame (OCI)

For the year ended  For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2025 March 34, 2024
Actuarial Losses/ (Gains) on obligation for the year {3.39) 4.00
Net Expense/(Income) for the perigd recopnised in OCI (3.3%) 4.99

tiv) Aciuarial assumptions

Description Gratuity as on
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Morlality Table (LIC) India Assured Lives  India Assured Lives
. Maortality 2012-14 Mortality 2012-14

Discount rate (p.4) 6.50% 7.15%
Allrition Rate

Upto 30 years 49.37% 25.00%

31 to 44 years 27.88% 25.00%

Abave 44 years 43.24% 25.00%
Rate of escalation in salaty (p.a) 12.00% 11.00%

Retivemeni age 40 Years 60 Yearg
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27 Employee benefit obligations (Continued)

(v) Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Discount sate : +1% (1.10) (1.13)
Discount rate : -1% E17 1.23
Salary escalation fate : +1% 0.97 .10
Salary escalation rate : 1% (0.96) {1.06)
Attsition rate: +1% 0.41) (0.43)
Attrition rate: -1% 0.42 0.44

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assutaption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method {present value of the defined benefit obligation cateulated with the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reposting period) has been applied as when calcufating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The Mortality daes not have a significant impact on the Liability , hence are not considered a significant actuarial assumption for the purpose of Sensilivity

analysis
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

The expected future contribution and estimated future benefit payments from 1he fund are as follows

Gratuity
Expected contribution to the fund during the year ending Masch 31, 2025 Unfunded
Estimated benefit payments from the fund - Time period (in years)
Within 1 year 6
2-5 years 22
6 -1 years 89
More than 19 vears 30

The weighted average duration of {based on discounted cashflows) is 5 years

This space hay heen left blank intentionally
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(Al amounts are in INK Millions wnless otherwise stated)
28 Financial instvuments - Fair values and rvisk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values
Fair values are categorised into different tevels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1 - Quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are obscrvable for the asset or linbilily, either directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectby (i.e. derived
from prices) :

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data funobscrvabic inputs)

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair vafues of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hicrarchy

As at March 31, 2025

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars FVIPL  Amartised Total carrying Level E Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents - 2,284.32 2,284.32 - - - -

16,844.18
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents B 36,844.18 ) ) h -

Trade receivables - 296.88 856.88 - . - -
Tnvestments {excluding subsidiary)* 619.26 - 619.26 619.26 - - 619.26
Loans 6,018.89 6,018.89
Other financial assets - 17,958.15 17,958.15 - - - -
619.26  64,002,42 64,621.68 G19.26 - - 61Y.26

Financial liabijities

Trade payables - 46,892,303 46,892.30 - - - -
Debt sccurities - 1,407.09 1,607.09 - - - -
Borrowings (other than debt securilies) - 3,642.17 3,642.17 - - - -
Iease liability - 50,02 50.02 - - - -

- 51,591.58 51,591.58 - . - N
As at March 31, 2024
Carrying value Fair value
Particulors FVTPL  Amortised Total carrying Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total
costs AINGUIE

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 2,236.34 2,236.34 - - - -
N 30,560.23
Bank balances other Lhan cash and cash equivalents - 30,566.23 - - - -
Trade reccivables - 628.89 628.89 - . “ -
Investments (exciuding subsidiary)* 323.96 - 323.86 323.96 - - 32396
Otber financial assets - 10,§29.22 10,129,22 - - - "
323.96  43,560.68 43,884.64 323.96 - - 323.96

Financial liahilities
Trade payables - 37,801.66 17,801.66 - - - -
- 37,801.66 37,801.66 - - - R

*Inveslment in subsidiarics is measured at cost

The company does not have any financial asset or liabilities measured at fair vatue through other comprehensive income,
The company has not separately disclosed the fair vaiues for financial assels and liabilities other than investments, because their carrying amounls are a reasonable
approximation of the fair vahues.

B Valuation technique used to determine fair values

Specific valuation technigue to value financial instruments like:

i. Usc of quoted market prices for financial instruments traded in active markets,

ii. Comparabie company multiple/discounted cosh flow analysis for other financial instruments.

iii, The fair values for financial assets and liabilitics other than investments are disclosed at there carrying value as their carrying amounts are a reasonabic
approximation of the fair values.



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely kmown as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited)
Notes to the Anancial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2025

(AN amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated}

C Financial risk management
The Company has exposure 1o the Following risks arising from financial instruments:
(&) Credit risk;
(11} Liguidity risk; and
{iii) Market risk

Risk management framework

‘Fhe Company’s board of dirgctors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversiglt of the Company’s risk management framework, The Company’s risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitar risks and
adherence 1o limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s aclivitics. The
Company, through its training and management standards and pracedures, aims to maintaia a diseiplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their zales and abligations.

i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a cusiomer or cotnterparty t¢ a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obigations, and arises
principally trom the Company's receivables from customers. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to
clients, including trade ecceivable. The maximum exposure to credit sk is equal to the carrying value of the financiaf assets. The objective of managing
counferparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets, The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account heir financial
position, past experience and other factors.

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Gronp generally invests in depasits with banks and financial institutions with high
credit ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

Trade Receivables

The Company applics the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to mcasure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all trade
receivables.

The application of a simplified approach does nat require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs al each reporting date, vight from s initial recognition.

To measure the expected credit losses, the Company has a large mumber of customer base with shared credit risk characteristics. As per policy of the Company, trade
receivable 1o the extent not cevered by collateral (i.e. unsecurcd trade receivabic) is considered for computation of loss allowance and the amount of loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Trade receivable of the group are of short duration, Though trade receivabies are due are shost duration there are
certain instances of delay in collcetion. The Group has computed expected eredit loss due to delay in collection.

Margin Trading facilities

In accesdance with Ind AS 109, the Groap applics an expected credit loss model (ECL) for measurement and recognition of impaisment loss. The expected credil
loss is a preduct of exposure at defanit (EAD), probability of default (PD) and Loss given default (LGD). The financial assets have been sepmented into three stages
Dbased on the tisk profiles, primarily based on past due.

The Company has a large number of customer base with shared credit risk characteristics. Margin rading Facilities are secured by collaterals. As per palicy of the
Company, margin trading facilities lo the cxient covered by collateral and servicing interest on a reaular basis is nol considered as due/default.

As per Ind AS 109, the maximum peried to consider when measuring expecled credit losses is the maximum cantractual period (including extension options} over
which the entity is exposed to credit risk and not a longer period, even if that longer peried is consistent with business practice. Therefore, the maximum period to
consider when measuring expected credit losses for these trading facilities is the maximum contractual period {i.e. on demand/one day).

The Company holds adequate collateral for its credit exposure hence the provision for loss allowance in this regard is Nil for year

Instrument Type Principal type of collateral held Percentage of cxposure that is subject to
coliateral
As nt As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Masgin Trading Facility Shares and Securities 100% NA

The allowance far lifetime expected credit loss on trade receivables for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31,2024 was INR 95,47 millions {Net of bad
debts written off) and TNR 35.72 millions respectively. The reconciliation of allowance for doubttil trade receivables is as follows:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2025 Nuvel 31, 2024
Balance ut the beginning of the year (35.7) {32.32)
Change during the year (59.75) (3.403%
Bad Debts writien off - -
Balance st the end of the year (35.47) (35.02)

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is fimited as the Company generafly invests in deposits with banks and financsal institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by domestic credit rating agencies.



Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely kmown as Nexthillisn Technology Private Limited)
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28 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
ii. Liguidity risk
Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficutty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settied by delivering casl:

or anothet financial asset, The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufificient fiquidity to meet ifs liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the Company’s reputation.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company has managed its
liquidity and working capital requirements through cash generated from operations and through intermittent short term borrowings. The Company has suflicient short
term fund based lines, which provides healthy liquidity and these carry highest credét quality rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquidity risk is
perceived.

The tables below provide details regarding the confractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at:

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2025 Carrying amount 6 months or less Due in 6 - 12 Duein | «2year  Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial Habilities
Trade payables 46,492.30 46,892.30 - - -
Debi securities 1,007.09 - t5.87 991.22 -
Borrowings (other 1han debt securities) 3.642.17 364217 - - -
Other financial Habilities
Lease Hability 50,02 6.83 721 16.56 19.40
51591.58 50,541.32 23.08 1.007.78 19.40
Countractual cash flows
March 31, 2024 Carrying amount 6 months orless  Duein 6-12 Duein -2 year  Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 37,801.66 37,801.66 - . -
Other financtal Habilities
Lease liability - - - - -
37,801.6G 37,801.66 - - -

iii. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fhe fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk compriscs of three
types of risks: interest rate risk, price risk and cuzrency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade receivable/payable, other financiaf assets and
liabitities. The Company is not exposed to any significant market risks.

{u) Tnterest rate risk

[nterest eate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is
exposed to inferest sate risk arising nainly from borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk becatise the cash flows associated
with floating rate borrowings wilt fluctuate with changes in intesest rates. The Company manages the interest rate risks by maintaining a debt postfolio comprising a
mix of fixed and foating rate borrowings.

This spuce hes heen left hlank intentionally
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28 Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk management (continﬁed)

(b} Currency risk

Foreign enrrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of chanpes in foreign exchange rates. Exposures can arisc
an account of the varieus assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies ather than Indian Rupee.

The following table shows foreign currency exposures in USD on financial insteuments at the end of the reporting peried:

i) Foreign currency exposure:

31 March 2025 31 Marceh 2024

Particulars
USD USD
Financial liabitities
Trade payable “ 13.67
Net Total - (13.67)
ii) Foreign currency scusitivity:
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Usp USD
1% Depreciation in INR
Tmpact on profit and loss - .
Particuiars 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
usD USD
1% Appreciation in INR
Tmpact on profil and foss - -
¢, Maturity Analysis of Assets And Liabilities
The below table shows an analysis of assets and liabilitics analysed according to when they are expected fo be recovered or settled.
As at March 31, 2028 A at March 31, 2024
(Less than 12 {(More than 12 (Less than 12 (Maore than 12
maonths) months} months) months)
Assets
Cash and cash equivatents 2,284.32 - 2,236.34 -
Bank balansces other than cash and cash equivalents 36,844.18 - 30,566.23 -
Trade Receivables 896.88 - 628,89 -
Investments (refer note n0.6} 619.26 19.50 323.96 2,785.68
Loan 6,018.89 - -
Other financial assets 17,923.37 34,78 10,088.38 40,84
Current tax assets (tet) 9.61 - - -
Deferred tax assels (net) - 2501 - 13.59
Propexty, plant and equipment - 2.56 - 5.60
Right-of-use assets 50.72 - -
Other non-financial assets 12215 - 152.89 -
64,718.67 132.56 43,997.69 2,845.71
Liabilities
Trade Payables
i. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.07 - 0.06 -
ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 46,892.23 - 37,801.60 -
small enterprises
Lease liability 14.06 3596 - -
Current tax liabilities {net) - - - 2.19
Provisions 6.38 24.39 2718 20.8%
Debi securities §5.87 991.22
Borrowings (other than debt securitics) 3,642.17 - - -
Other non-financial liabilities 134.23 - 142.82 -
50,705,061 l,OSlé'f 37,947.26 23.00

iv, Capital Manngenient

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stroug capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future devefopment of the business.
The Company manitors the return on capital and its objective when managing capital is to mainfain an optimal structure so as to maxinize shareholder value. During
the year the company has raised funds by way of borrowings and the cash and bank balances including liquid investments significantly exceeds the borrowings
accordingly the net debt is Nil and consequently net gearing ratio is alse Mil.
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29A Contingent liahilities and commitiments (te the extent not provided for)

Asgat As at
Pariteulars March 31,2025 Murch 31, 2024
a) Contingent Liabilities 43.01 -
b)) Conmitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execaled on capital account and not provided for : - -
£} Claims against the Company not acknovwledged as debls - -
The Company did not have any fong term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foresceable losses.
298 Guarantees
Particulars As at As at
I, March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Bank guarantees with exchanges as margin / government autherities 4.000.00 .

30 Earnings pet shave (EPS)

The following table sets Turth the compulation of basic and diluied earnings per share:

For the year ended

For the year

Particulars ended
March 31, 2025 Mﬂ_rch 31,2024
Eurnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 4,218.17 297153
Shares
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for caleulation of basic EPS {In millions) 6.63 6.63
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares -
Weighted average number of equity shares for calcutation of diluted EPS (Tu millions) 6.63 6,63
Basic earnings per share 636,66 449,41
Dilated earnings per share 636,66 44941
Nominal value per share 10 10

31 Related party disclesures
A Naenes of velnted parties and rated party relationship

with whom transactions huve taken place

Name

Type

Billicnbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formerly known a3
Biltionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limiled)

Holding company

Groww Asset M, t Limited

Subsidiary (fram 03 May 2023 to 22 August 2024}

Groww Trustee Limiled

Subsichary (fram 03 May 2023 1o 22 August 2024)

Groww Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as
Rillionbrains Capital Private Lintited)

Fellow Subsidiary

Neobillion Fintech Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Groww Pay Services Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Groww Wealth Tech Private Limited {Formerly known as
Finmenis Tech Private Limed)

Fellow Subsidiary (From 8 March, 2023}

Groww Creditserv Teclnology Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary (From 12 January, 3024)

Harsh Jain

Key management personne]

Lalit Keshre

Key management persennel

Nishant Singh

Key management perscrmel (From 28 Marcls, 2023)

Santosh Jayaramn

Key management personnel (Upto 12 March, 2025)

Vikas Bansal

Key managemenl personnel (From 12 March, 2025)

Prashant Saran

Independent director

Neetn Kashiramka

Independent director (From 5 July, 2024}

Subhabrata Ghosh

Independent disector (Fron 5 July, 2024)
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31 Related party disclosures (Continved)

B. The following transactions were careicd ot with the related parties in the ordinary conrse of business:

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Fer the year
ended
March 31,2024

Bitlionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (Formerly known as Software, Server & Platform Charges (exctuding GST)

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited)

Grownwy Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as
Billionbraing Capital Privale Limited)

MNeobillion Fintech Private Limited

Groww Pay Services Privale Limited

Growav Asset Management Limited

Growsw Trustee Limiled

Groww Wealth Tech Private limited

Groww Creditserv Technalogy Private Limiled

Key management personnel

Independent dircctors

Professionat and Consulting Charges

Share based paymenls

Expenses incurred by related party on behatf of Compasy
Reimbursement paid .

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recevered

Rent expense

inter-corporate loan taken*

Inter-corporate lean repaid

Interest on [nter-company loan

Sale of equity inglrument of Growawv Assel Managemenl
Limited

Sale of equity instrument of Groww Trustee Limited

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related parly
Reimbursement recovered

Professional and Consulting Charges

Sale of assels by Company

Rent income

Expenses incurred by related parly on behatf of Company
Reimbursement paid

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reinsbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by Company on behall of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Transaction and other related charges

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Reimbursement Paid

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by relaled parfy on behalf of Company
Reimbursement Paid

Investment in subsidiary

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement recovered

Expenses incurred by relaled party on behalf of Company

Reimbursement Paict

Expenses incurzed by relaled party on behall of Company
Reimbursement Paid

Short term employee benefils
Post employement benefils**

Director's sitting fees

* The rate of interest lor inler-corporale foan taken during the year is 8.05%.

37,475.15
284.07
98.54
25.68
(24.42)
(22.04)
11932
38.13
11,271.10
(9,271.10)
108.56
€2,595.37)

{15.00)

242
8.81
205.67

(7.54)
0.22

(0.22)

(1.97
1.92
150.48
0.26

10.26)

(0.07)
0.07
.13

(0.13)

0,09
(0.09)
230
£2.200

0.54
(0.54)

16.69
048

828

18,258.15
252,53
4030
23.09
(22,509
(34.16)
188.11
47.41
116,929.63
(116,929.63)
310

(207
(5.34)
114,39
(©.01)
(432)
0.25
(29.74)

(3.00}
508 80

{0.08)
0.08

7722
a.14
(0.14)

{12.72)
12.72
¢.37
0.29

100.00

214
a.14

2.00

4 Transactions and balances wilh key management personnel for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2624 is basis allocation for gratuity of key

management personnet abtained from actiary.
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31 Related party disclosures (Continued)

C.  Outsianding balances

Related Parey

Parlicakars

Asal
March 31, 2625

Asal
March 31, 2024

Groww Sery Private Limited (Formerly known as Trade Payable - (0.68)
Billionbraing Capitai Private Limuited) Trade Receivable 0,68 11.94
Advance to refated party 0,62 27.19
Receivable from related party 0.17
Groww Pay Service Private Limited Trade Payable (39.32) {50.80)
Billionbrains Garage Yentures Limited {formesly known as Trade Payable {2,961.58) {63,881 .66}
Biflionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limiled) Receivable from related party 7 103,02
Intercorporate Deposit 2,000.00 -
Tnterest accrued an Intercorporate Deposit 3573 -
Groww Wealth Tech Private limited Receivable fron: related parly 0.02 -
Groww Assel Management Limited Trade Payable - 0.67)
Key management personnet Provision post employement benefits** {1.52) (1.60)

+*Transactions and balances with key management personnel for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 33, 2024 is basis allocation for gratuity of key

management personnel obtained from actuary.

This specce has heen left blank infentionaily
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Notes to the Standalone finascial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AN amounty are in INR Mitlions unless othenwise stated)
32 Share Based Payments

The holding Company has Employee Stock Option Scheme namely *Bitlionbrains Garage Ventures Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024 (formely known as
Rillianbrains Garage Yenlires Private Limsited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024" (BGV ESOS 2024Y) , which was replaced from Groww nc 2017 Stack Incentive
Plan (*GSIP 2017"} subscquent to the approval of the scheme of merger between Groww [ne., State of Delaware, USA and the Company by the Hor'ble NCLT via
merger order dated 28th March 2024,

BGY ESOS 2024 is prepared basis the same terms and conditions as of GSIP 2017 except on the exercise peried of the options which is modified to twenty years from
existing ten years and excercise price has been modified to INR 10 from excercise price $.27 - $61.3433 for all the options. Further, the options of GSIP 2017 have been
adjusted for swap ralio i.e., for every one (1) option held under GSIP 2817, such option holders shall be granted two point two (2.2) oplions under BGYV ESOS 2024 as
applicd to shareholders and hiave been restated as if they were available of earliest reporting period in the financial statements, ierespective of their actual date.

On 28 Jung 2024, the board of directars of holding conspany approved the BGY ESOS 2024 for issue of stock options 1o the permanent employees inclnding Directors of
the Company (ather than Promoter(s) or person belanging to the Promoter Group of the Company, Independent Direclors, if any, and Directors holding directly or
indirectly more than 10% of the culstanding equity shares of the Company) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred 1o as an “Employee(s)""). The board of directors of
halding company has constituted an ESOP conmittee for implemention and administration of BGY ESOS 2024, The employee selected by the ESOP commiitee from
time (o time will be entitled 1o options, subject lo satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditiens, viz., continuing employment and subject to perfermance parameters
defined in the BGY BSOS 2024,

Stock options granted under BGV ESOS 2024/GSIP 201 7 would vest based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the respective leller of Grant/stock oplion grant
natice. The company/erstwhile holding company has issued stock optiens with a vesting period of 12 - 48 manths with a cliff of 12 months and fully vesled slock options.

Far stack options granted under BGV ESOS 2024, the weighted average fair value of options during the year ended 31 March 2025 was INR 19.33 and for stock options
granted under GSIP 2017, the weighled average fair value of options during the year 31 harch 2024 - $£17.09. As al 31 March 2025, the weighted average contractual
remaining life of aplions is 16.66 years

Eligbile employees were pravided with an aliemative of cash ar share based payment for performance bonuses. Pursuant to the same, the Company paid performance
banus in the form of stock options amounting to INR 2.42 Million (31 March 2024 - INR .76 Million} which is included as part of Salaries, allowances and bonus.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 -
(i} the holding Company has issuzd bonus in the ratio of 34:1 to all the exisling shaceholders whose names appear in the register of members of the Company as on 9
Auuusl 2024, Hence, each oplion granted under BGY ES0S 2024 would be eligible far L5 equity shares upon excersse,

(i} the holding Company has Farther issued bonus in the ratic of 10:1 to all the existing shareholders whase names appear in the register of members of the Company as
on 28 January 2025, Henee, each option granted under BGV ESOS 2024 would be eligible for |.5 equity shares upon excerise over and above point (i}

(it} The holding Company has sub-divided | equity share having a face value of INR 10/ each fully paid up nto 5 equily shares having a face value of INR 2/- each
fally paid up. Hence, each oplion granted under BGV ESOS 2024 has been sub-divided inta 5 options with an excercise price of INR 2/~ The effect of the same have
been reslated as if Lhey were available of eastiest reporting period in the financial stalements, irrespective of their actual date.

Accordingly oplions gramied shall have conversion ratio as belaw.

{i) options granted upto 9 August 2024 shall have a conversion ratio of 16.5:1

(it} options gravled from 9 August 2024 to 28 January 2025 shall have a conversion ratio of 1.L:1.
(1) eptions granted from 29 January 2025 shall have a conversion ratio of 1:1.

Reconciliation of share options during the financial year

Particulars 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Chutslanding a9 at the beginning of the year 2,245 880,00 402,220.00
- Granted/ { Transfesred [n) 4,439,343.00 2,068,395.00
- Forfeiled/( Translerred Oul) (259,230.00) (224,735.08)
Qutstanding as at the end of the yeas 5,425,993.00 2,245,880,00
Vested as at the el of the year 1,739,450.00 §,495,505.00

Tair vitlue of stack options granted

The fair value of the stock options granted is estimated at the grant date using ann’s length price of the stock options compuled based on the Black-Scholes modet, taking
into account the terms and conditions upan which the siock options were granted. The iputs used to measure fair values of opliens granted on the grant date were as

follows:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Dividend yield (% p.a} 0% a%
Expected volalility (% pa} A8,6% - 49.1% 45% ~47.2%
Risk-free interest rale (% p.a.) 6.68% - 7.0% 3.6% - 4.6%
Expected life ol option (years) 1075 - 11.77 6,50 -7.00!
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(Al ameints are in INR Miltions unless othenvise stated)

33 Pues to Micra and Smakl Enferprises

The Ministry of Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micso and Small Enterprises should menlion
in their correspondence with its the Entrepreneurs Mentorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accerdingly, the disclosure in respect of e amounts
payable 10 such enterprises as #1 31 March 2025 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the company, Further, in management's view,
the impact of interest, if any, thal may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 (‘the Acl’) is not expected 1o be
material,

As at Asat
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024

Particulars

The principal amount and interest due thereon remaising unpaid to any supplier ag at the end of the accounting year.

~ Principal amount 0.07 0.06
« nterest due thereon - -
The amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment made te the supplier beyond the appointed day durbng (he year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest under this Act
Amouni of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ai the end of the accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable cven in the succeeding years, (il actually paid to the small enterprise, forthe
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditre.

Total gutstunding principal dues of nricvo enterprises and small enterprises included jn Trude Puynbles (Note [2) 0.07 0,06

34 Pursuant to Share Purchase Agrecmient dated May 11, 2021, between Grovav [nvest Tech Private Limited {Formerly known as Nexthillion Technology Private Limited) (“Company™} and

3.

tn

Tndiabulls Housing Finance Limited (ersiwhile Sponsor), and Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited for the acguisition of 100% shareholding of Indiabulls Asset Management
Company Limited (“IAMCL") and Indigbuils Trustee Company Limited (“ITCL"), ull the necessary approval was received and accerdiogly, the Company paid an agurente purchase
consideration of TNR 175 62 erores (including cash and cash equivalents of INR 100.62 crores) for the acquisition of 100% share capital of IAMCL and ITCL and all the equily shares
stand to be Iransferred (Demat and physical} to Nextbillion Technology Private Limited on May 03, 2023, and pursuant to this IAMCL and FTCL bave become the wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company effective from May 03, 2023,

Subsequently, pursuant lo share purchase agreement dated August 19, 2024 executed between Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (fermerly known as Billionbrains Garage Venlures
Private Limited), Groww Assel Management Linsited and the Company, Billionbrains Garage Venlures Limited (formerly known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Privale Limited)
scquired 100% of the share capital of Groww Assel Management Limited from {he Company.

Segment Reporting
The ultimate holding company prepares the consofidated financial statements. In accordance with Ind AS 108 on operaling segments, the Company has not disciosed the segments
jnfonnation in the slandalone financial statements.

36 No Funds have been advanced or loaned of invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium o7 any other sources or kind of fands) by the Company to o¢ in any other persans or

entities, including foreign entities (*Tntermediaries”} with the understanding, whether recarded in writing or atherwise, that the Intermediary shatl lend or invest in pazty identified by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company l:as not received any fund from any parties (funding party) with the understanding that the Company shal) whether, directly
o indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or entitics identified by or behall’ of the Company ("Ullimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any garanlee, secwrity or the like on hehalf of the
Ulimate Beneficiaries,

37 Corpaorate Sociak Responsibilities (CSR) Expenscs

As per Section 135 af the Companies Act, a company meeting the activity (hreshold needs to spend at least 2% of ils average net profit for the immedialely preceding three financial years
on eotporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The Company undertaok twa iniliatives to channelise efforts to empower the underpriviteged constituents of seciety through Computer
Aided Leanzing and Digital Literacy as Lite Sill Program in schools and Child Empotverment Foundalion India (Bal Utsav)- Ishaala programmes designed in the domains of Financial and
Digital Literacy, Skilling of youth in the state of Karnataka.

We partnered with two credible Non-Profit Organisations namely Pratham infotech Foundation Teust and Chitd Empowerment Foundation India
Gross amount Tequired to be spent by the Cenpasy during the year Rs. 33.60 Millions {31 March 2024: 7.07 Millions).

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Total
Totaf sntouret transferred amount

Tatal amount 1o unspen CSH acconnt Bate of transfer  Total amount transferred to Date of transfer
Parvticulars spent far the o e to unspent CSR spent for the  wnspent CSR accourst o wnspeni CSR
. a9 per subsection (6) of N .
financial year account financial year as per suhsection (6} acconnt

Sectiom (35
eetion of Section 135

For the above putpose 285 30.14 April 25, 2025 5725 1.82  Aypril 18, 2024

3% The Financial statements are presented in TNR Millions (rounded ofty. Those items which arc required 10 be disclosed and which were not presented in financial statements due to rounding

ofF to the nearest INR Millions are given below in INR:

As at / for the year ended
Particubars Note March 3¢, 2025 March 31, 2024
Reversal of provision for loss allowance 21 - -38.480
Miscellaneous Expenses 25 - GOR
Foreign currency sensitivity (1% Depreciation in INRY 26 - 13,666
Foreign currency sensitivity (1% Appreciation in INR) 26 - (13,666)
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During the year end 31 March 2025, pursuant to Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) circular dated 1 July 2024 on "Charges levied by Market
Infrastructure Institutions — True to Label”, certain Market Infrastructure Institutions charges (MII charges) are to be recorded on a net basis. Accordingly, the
previous year figures for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been re-grouped/ reclassified for consistency and better presention.

Asreported  Revised classification Change due to
earlier classification

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Income

Revenue from operations

- Fees and commission 27,092.70 23,604.67 3,488.03

Expenses
Other expenses
- Transaction and other related charges 4,098.90 610.82 3,488.08

Key Ratios
Additional regulatory information required under (WB) (xvi) of Division IIl of Schedule Il amendment, disclosure of ratios, is not applicable to the
Company as it is in broking business and not an NBFC registered under Section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
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